
Work Session Minutes 1 January 3, 2017

WORK SESSION MEETING
BERRIEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

TUESDAY, JANUARY 3, 2017
6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

Chairman, John Nugent called the work session meeting of the Berrien County Board of Commissioners
to order on Tuesday, January 3, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. Members of the Board of Commissioners present
were, Commissioners Jimmy Parker, Robert Griner, Doc Sumner and Pixie Harrod.

INVITED GUEST: Wayne Chin,  Enigma Fire Department, addressed the board about the 1980 fire
truck that was discussed last month and voted to surplus that vehicle.  Mr. Chin advised the board that he
needs that truck back in his fleet.  He agreed to loan it to one of the new stations until we bought trucks
for those stations.  There are repairs that need to be completed but he needs the truck back in his fleet.
This item will be added to the agenda next week.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
A. Fines & Fees – Administration stated this item was on the agenda last month and tabled.

There is no new information to provide at this time. Animal Control Officer, Jessica Stone, addressed the
board with some of the issues she is having with enforcing animal control.  An example she used is a
citizen who does not have a rabies license.  She can tell them to get it because it is state law but if they
choose not to get it she cannot do anything about it.  Another example is a dog that keeps going to an
elderly couple’s house and getting into their trash.  They are disabled and cannot physically clean up the
trash and the owner of the dog will not do anything about it.  This becomes a nuisance.  Jessica is
requesting the board put something in place that will help her be able to control these issues.  She will
provide some suggested fines before regular session next week.  Commissioner Jimmy Parker
understands where she is coming from and sees that we need to address this.  Commissioner Doc Sumner
feels we need to do something to help Jessica.  Chairman John Nugent said he feels the owner of the dog
should take care of it.  Commissioner Griner said if we put something in place not everyone would be
punished; only those not being responsible.  Chairman John Nugent stated that he wants to repeal all fees
except the animal control.  Commissioner Griner asked if he is including the Solid Waste License in that
also, and he said yes.  There was some discussion on the solid waste license.  Commissioner Pixie Harrod
stated on page four of the solid waste ordinance item b at the top of the page, he would like to see deleted.
Item b states:  No person shall allow dead animals to remain on or in front of his premises more than 24
hours without proper burial or other approved disposition.  Each 24-hour period excepting the first shall
be deemed a separate violation subject to the penalties set forth in this article.

NEW BUSINESS:
A. Nomination of 2017 Chairman and Vice Chairman for the Board of Commissioners –

This is an item that will be voted on during regular session. There was no discussion.

B. Board Appointments – Elections – Administration received a request from the Supervisor
of Elections, Melanie Ray, requesting the reappointment of Mrs. Carla Parrish and Mrs. Sandra Vaughn.
This is a 4-year term that is from June 2016 through June 2020.  Both individuals are willing to serve.

C. Bi-Weekly Payroll – Discussion – Commissioner Doc Sumner stated he was against this
from the beginning.  It has caused problems for some of our employees.  Commissioner Robert Griner
explained why we went to a bi-weekly payroll.  Commissioner Doc Sumner asked how the Department
Heads felt about the bi-weekly pay.  Ben Warren stated that he personally doesn’t care but if you ask his
employees most would probably say they prefer weekly pay. Commissioner Jimmy Parker stated that
every employee was given a check for an extra 40 hours when we went to bi-weekly payroll to assist
them in getting on this pay cycle.  Chairman John Nugent stated he knows that the Tax Commissioner



Work Session Minutes 2 January 3, 2017

Office is not in favor of the bi-weekly payroll.  Commissioner Pixie Harrod said we need to survey the
employees and ask them what they want.  Commissioner Robert Griner stated we need to leave it as it is.
County Administrator was given the directive to send out a survey and ask the employees if they prefer a
weekly payroll or a bi-weekly payroll.

D. Homer C. Sumner Rd. – Discussion – Administration received a request from
Commissioner Doc Sumner to have discussion on the Homer C. Sumner Rd.  Commissioner Doc Sumner
stated that he would like this road to be named from the Lenox-Alapaha Hwy. to the Tift County Line.
He would like to see this voted on next week and passed on for Legislature to present.

E. Board Appointment – Recreation – Administration received a request from
Commissioner Doc Sumner stating he would like to resign on the Recreation Board as the County
Representative and to appoint Commissioner Pixie Harrod to the Recreation Board.

F. County Attorney – Discussion – Administration received a request from Commissioner
Doc Sumner to discussion the appointment of county attorney.  Commissioner Doc Sumner stated it was
his understanding that we would continue with the current appoint until some of the pending cases were
completed.  He feels we need to consider the appointment of Mark Perry as county attorney at this time.
Commissioner Robert Griner gave a little bit of background information on some of the cases that has
been settled under the representation of our current attorney as well as the gain from the LOST
negotiations they represented us in.  The firm specializes in local government.  Commissioner Jimmy
Parker said he feels Mark Perry is a good attorney but he has no governmental experience.  County
Administrator, Brenda Ferrell, also explained how the insurance company is now using Hall, Booth,
Smith to represent them on claims. Commissioner Griner also stated that it was previously discussed to
let the current firm handle the pending litigation and all new stuff go to the new county attorney but Hall,
Booth, Smith said they would not be interested in doing that.  Commissioner Doc Sumner stated he would
like to hear them say that.  Chairman Nugent stated Jennifer Herzog, County Attorney, did stated that in a
meeting.

G. Jail Repair – Administration received a request from the Sheriff for repair on a jail cell.
One quote was received from Bradford Machine Shop for $1,940.00.  Sheriff Paulk stated that this is a
repair to a wall that goes between female and male jail cells.  We are trying to fix the wall where they
cannot break through it.  County Administrator, Brenda Ferrell, stated we have one quote because this
will be a special design.  She asked the board if they wanted any additional quotes.  The board was in
favor of the quote from Bradford Machine Shop and moving forward with no additional quotes.

H. Intergovernmental Agreement with Ray City/Berrien County for Building Inspections.
Administration received a request from Mayor Gulley from the City of Ray City requesting the county
complete building inspections for them.  They would like to return to the county 50% of the cost of the
permit.

I. Ratification Items – Administration asked the board to ratify the following purchases:

Nashville Tractor (Unit 121 – Repair PTO Drive) $1,418.26
Albany Industrial – Jail Supplies $1,508.84
Starr Aviation – Airport General Liability Ins. Renewal $1,174.00
Atlas Manufacturing, Inc. – Fire Station Additions $39,480.00

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES AND DEPARTMENTS:
Crissy Staley –

 Development Authority received notification that the One GA Grant was approved in the amount
of $499,749 for road, water and sewer in the new industrial park.



Work Session Minutes 3 January 3, 2017

Ben Warren –
 On the extension of the new fire stations, is the Road Department going to build the pads and get

them ready.  Chairman Nugent said we need to do that; they will be ready to start the additions in
February.  The Road Department will start the preparation for the pads.

COMMISSIONER’S ITEMS:
Doc Sumner –

 Stated he wants to see the East Berrien voting precinct opened back up.  Pixie Harrrod stated that
is one thing that he has received a lot of complaints about.  There was some discussion on why
the precinct was closed.  County Administrator will get the cost to operate that precinct before
next week’s meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:
Pernell McCovey –

 Asked the Board if we will be getting any holidays back.  County Administrator, Brenda Ferrell,
provided some of the history on the holidays.  We currently have eight holidays and the board
does not see that changing.

Tony Boyd –
 Stated that when there is a holiday they have to use two hours of personal time for make up their

10-hour day.  He does not feel this is fair.  County Administrator, Brenda Ferrell, explained that
our policy states a holiday is eight hours.  She also explained that there are several other
departments with 12-hour days that use four hours of personal time.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS:
Brenda Ferrell –

 Stated she has requested quotes from South Georgia Banking Company and Guardian Bank for
rates on our 2017 TAN (credit line).  She stated that those are the only two banks who quoted the
last couple years and asked if there is anyone else she needs to contact.  Those quotes will be
provided during regular session.

 Probate Judge, Christina Allen, asked if the board would our Code Enforcement Office to take an
oath.  We have not done this in the past.  The Board does not want to do this.

ADJOURN
With no other business to come before the Board, Commissioner Jimmy Parker made the motion to
adjourn, which was seconded by Commissioner Doc Sumner. Meeting was adjourned at 7:25 p.m.

_______________________________ ________________________________
Chairman, John Nugent Commissioner, Robert Griner

_______________________________ ________________________________
Commissioner, Jimmy Parker Commissioner, Pixie Harrod

_______________________________ ATTEST________________________
Commissioner, Doc Sumner County Clerk


